
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Please ask for: Ross Johnston, Democratic Support Officer  
T: 01752 307990 E: ross.johnston@plymouth.gov.uk 

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS 
EDUCATION 
 
Date:    Monday 4 July 2011 
Time:   10.00 am 
Venue: Council House (located next to the Civic Centre) 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business overleaf. 
 
Members and officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting. 
 
Please note that unless the chair of the meeting agrees, mobile phones should be switched off 
and speech, video and photographic equipment should not be used in meetings. 
 
 
Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 

 

 

 Barry Keel 
Chief Executive 
 
Plymouth City Council 
Civic Centre 
Plymouth  PL1 2AA 
 
www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 
 
Date: 22 June 2011 

Public Document Pack



 
STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS 
EDUCATION 
 
 

PART I 
 
AGENDA 
 
PART I – PUBLIC MEETING 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
  
 To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by SACRE Members. 
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
 Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 

agenda. 
  
3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 6) 
  
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2011. 
  
4. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS    
  
 To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 

forward for urgent consideration.  
  
5. WELCOME TO NEW MEMBERS    
  
 The Chair will welcome new members to the forum. 
  
6. NATIONAL AND LOCAL RE UPDATES    
  
 To receive updates from the Religious Education Advisor on national and local issues. 
  
7. THE NASACRE CONFERENCE    
  
 To receive feedback from the Religious Education Advisor on the NASACRE conference. 
  
8. PLYMOUTH SACRE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2011 - 2014    
  
 To agree the Plymouth SACRE Development Plan 2011 – 2014. 

 
 
 
 

  



 

9. NEW PREVENT STRATEGY   (Pages 7 - 12) 
  
 To receive an update from the Religious Education Advisor on the new prevent strategy 

and the implications for Religious Education. The full strategy can be viewed at 
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/counter-terrorism/prevent/prevent-
strategy/prevent-strategy-review?view=Binary. 

  
10. PLYMOUTH CENTRE FOR FAITHS AND CULTURAL 

DIVERSITY   
 

  
 The Religious Education Advisor will update SACRE on the Plymouth Centre for Faiths 

and Cultural Diversity. 
  
11. UNMET NEEDS IN RELIGIOUS EDUCATION - ST 

LUKES TRUST UPDATE   
 

  
 To receive an update on the St Lukes Trust from the Religious Education Advisor. 
  
12. HOLOCAUST MEMORIAL DAY UPDATE    
  
 To receive an update from the Religious Education Advisor on the Holocaust Memorial 

Day, 27 January 2012 and to consider plans for the day. See www.hmd.org.uk for further 
information. 

  
13. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING    
  
 The next meeting will be held at 10am on Monday 28 November 2011 at a venue to be 

confirmed. 
  
14. EXEMPT BUSINESS    
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s) of 
business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended 
by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  

  
PART II (PRIVATE MEETING) 
 
AGENDA 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE 
that under the law, the Panel is entitled to consider certain items in private.  Members of the 
public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are discussed.  
 
NIL. 
  
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education Wednesday 9 March 2011 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 
 

Wednesday 9 March 2011 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Stark, in the Chair for items 68 - 70 
Ms Griffiths, in the Chair for items 71 - 80 
Ms Hutchings, Clare Hamon, Father G Carpenter, Dr Saha, Mr Lyddon, Mrs Kelly, Mrs 
Bowness, Zainab Abubakar, Mrs Shelmerdine, Mrs Bradley and Richard Maudsley. 
 
Apologies for absence: Councillor Gordon, Councillor Drean, Rev. P Chave, Mrs 
Bellows, Mrs McVicker, Mr Blackler, Mrs Hughes, Dr Wintersgill, Councillor Tuohy, Mrs 
Mitchell, Mrs Hill, Councillor Foster, Mr Grainger, Ben Seel and Mrs Armitage.  Fiona 
Hutchings, Clare Hamon, Mrs Z Abubakar, Father G Carpenter, Dr J K Saha, Cathy 
Bowness, Ms T Griffiths, Mr T Lyddon, Mrs P Shelmerdine and Richard Maudsley 
 
Also in attendance: Mr. Marshall (RE Advisor), Mr. Johnston (Democratic Support 
Officer) and Jenny Evans (Youth Cabinet representative). 
 
The meeting started at 1.00 pm and finished at 3.30 pm. 
 
Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft 
minutes, so they may be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to 
confirm whether these minutes have been amended. 
 

68. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
The following declaration of interest was made by Members in accordance with the 
Code of Conduct – 
  
Name Subject Reason Interest 
Mrs C Bowness Holocaust 

Memorial Day 
(minute 73) 

Is an advisor for 
Holocaust 
Memorial Day 

Personal 

 
69. MINUTES   

 
Agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2010 are approved as 
a correct record. 
 

70. CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS   
 
There were no items of Chair’s urgent business. 
 

71. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR   
 
It was confirmed that Group A have the chair, in partnership with Group C until 
Summer 2013. Mrs Helena Mitchell would be Chair until Summer 2012 with Ms 
Teresa Griffiths as Vice-Chair. 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education Wednesday 9 March 2011 

 
72. WELCOME TO NEW MEMBERS   

 
The Chair welcomed the following members to SACRE – 
 

• Mrs Anna Kelly representing the Jewish community; 
 

• Dr Barbara Wintersgill (absent). 
 

73. HOLOCAUST MEMORIAL DAY   
 
SACRE Members were provided with the booklet handed out at Holocaust Memorial 
Day events held on 27 January 2011 and informed by the RE Adviser that – 
 

(a) Solly Irving, a Jewish survivor of the Holocaust visited some of 
Plymouth’s schools, during a four day visit, delivering a positive 
and powerful message about the Holocaust and highlighting the 
importance of Holocaust Memorial Day; 
 

(b) there was a moving and significant event held at Mount Edgcumbe 
which provided compassion, passion and information to those who 
attended and was attended by the Deputy Lord Mayor; 
 

(c) a lunchtime event was held at Plymouth University where a 
powerful art installation was on view from local sixth formers who 
visited Auschwitz in 2010; 
 

(d) the final event of Holocaust Memorial Day, centred around this 
year’s theme of, ‘untold stories’ and was held in the evening at the 
Unitarian Church, in the city centre. It provided a number of 
different informative and moving presentations from members of 
different communities. Local sixth formers also took a lead role in 
sharing their personal learning from the “Lessons from Auschwitz 
programme”. 

 
Mrs Bowness informed members that – 
 

(e) the theme for Holocaust Memorial Day 2012 would be ‘speak up, 
speak out’ and had been chosen by young people taking part in 
this year’s events; 
 

(f) holocaust education materials trialled in special schools was 
requested by 12 schools and had been a success with more 
materials being requested for the events in 2012; 
 

(g) Plymouth SACRE played such an influential role in Holocaust 
Memorial Day and the annual programme of Solly Irving’s talks was 
praised and noted by many other national communities. 

 

Page 2



Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education Wednesday 9 March 2011 

Agreed that Rev. Chave and Jonathan Marshall, RE Adviser are thanked for all the 
hard work that they put in to organising Holocaust Memorial Day and the supporting 
events. 
 

74. NASACRE   
 
The RE Adviser informed members that following discussions with Councillor Stark 
and senior Council Officers the decision to refuse National Association of Standing 
Advisory Council’s on Religious Education (NASACRE) subscriptions had been 
revoked and that SACRE had now fully renewed its NASACRE membership. 
 
Members were further informed that – 
 

(a) Dr Wintersgill would be a key speaker at the SACRE Regional 
Conference being held in Birmingham on 31 March 2011; and it 
was hoped that she would provide feedback at the next meeting of 
SACRE; 
 

(b) the NASACRE AGM was coming up and attendance of SACRE 
members at this event would depend on the budget provided to 
SACRE for 2011/2012 due to the potential transport costs; 
 

(c) an application for up to £5k, from Plymouth SACRE, would be 
submitted to NASACRE, who were offering grants for youth 
interfaith projects. This would be for a project to further support the 
development of RE in schools, through the sharing and 
understanding of key stories, especially Christian ones. This work 
would be undertaken in partnership with the Centre for Faiths and 
Cultural Diversity. (PCFCD)  

 
Agreed that – 
 

(1) Councillor Stark be thanked for the time and commitment he gave 
to SACRE’s continued membership of NASACRE; 
 

(2) Jonathan Marshall, RE Adviser will write up and submit the bid, on 
behalf of SACRE and the PCFCD, before the end of the month. 

 
75. NATIONAL AND LOCAL UPDATES   

 
The RE Advisor provided SACRE Members with an update on national and local 
updates. Members were informed that – 
 

(a) 
 

the national, statutory status of RE remained the same, and there 
was no intention that this would change following the Department 
for Education’s review of RE; 
 

(b) 
 

there was a concern that RE was not included as part of the 
English Baccalaureate, the Humanities section had been reduced 
to History and Geography; 

Page 3



Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education Wednesday 9 March 2011 

 
(c)   the reason RE had not formed part of the Humanities section was 

that it was already seen to be a compulsory subject, this was 
confirmed in a government letter to the RE Adviser; 
 

(d) many MPs were being requested to sign an Early Day Motion 
(EDM) about RE being included in the English Baccalaureate, 
although only 32 had signed to date; 
 

(e) funding for RE training and education of RE teachers had been 
significantly reduced, which could impact on the standards of RE 
being taught in the future; 
 

(f) Plymouth City Council’s RE Adviser post was separate from the 
earlier role that the adviser undertook as Director at the Centre for 
Faith’s and Cultural Diversity; 
 

(g) approximately half of Plymouth schools now had the Religious 
Education Handbooks launched in December by  the Devon and 
Plymouth RE Advisers; 
 

(h) ‘Celebrating RE Month’ was taking place this month (March) and 
already some Plymouth schools had taken part and produced 
some excellent work; 
 

(i) a DVD launch called, ‘It matters to me,’ the fruit of a year long 
youth interfaith project was due to take place on 28 March 2011 at 
the Oldway Mansion, Paignton, members were invited to attend. 

 
Members commented that – 
 

(j) if Members had not already done so they should write to their local 
MP requesting that they sign the EDM for the inclusion of RS within 
the English Baccalaureate; 
 

(k) RE was not simply a compulsory subject as it had a wider impact 
on the community, particularly with its importance to community 
cohesion. 

 
76. PLYMOUTH CENTRE FOR FAITHS AND CULTURAL DIVERSITY   

 
The RE Adviser informed members that – 
 

(a) the centre’s website was being reorganised, and for future events 
members should see the relevant section; 
 

(b) the centre had been commissioned to host a further number of 
‘preventing violent extremism’ awareness courses, called 
workshops to raise awareness of prevent (WRAP) and that SACRE 
members would be invited to attend when dates had been agreed. 

Page 4



Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education Wednesday 9 March 2011 

 
Mrs Hutchings also advised members that they could attend a free musical drama 
production by Notre Dame Pupils called ‘Seven Lost Words’ on 2 April 2011 at 
6:30pm at the Plymouth Cathedral. 
 

77. UNITY AND HUMANITY - A POSSIBLE APPROACH FOR SCHOOLS   
 
Dr Jatindra Saha addressed SACRE about an idea for a new approach to the 
teaching of RE, which centred on unity and humanity. Members were informed that – 
 

(a) there seemed to be a very specific approach to understanding 
Islam, which while important did not provide effective 
understanding for other religions; 
 

(b) the teaching of RE was not providing the required information 
about community cohesion; 
 

(c) the proposed teaching approach would seek to take a neutral 
religious standpoint and focus on informing people about the unity 
of humanity, where topics would be explained using a philosophical 
and scientific approach; 
 

(d) the proposal was to explain this subject using a presentation with 
the target audience initially being young people aged 16 – 18. 

 
Members commented that – 
 

(e) if this was to be developed the proposal would need to consider the 
topics taught during citizenship lessons as well as RE lessons; 
 

(f) there was a lot of multi-faith and multi-religion work happening in 
the community, which did not only focus on Islam. 

 
Agreed that a working group, to include the Chair, the RE Adviser and Dr Saha, is set 
up at the Centre for Faith’s and Cultural Diversity to review whether this would be an 
appropriate topic for SACRE to develop. 
 

78. PLYMOUTH SACRE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2011 - 2014   
 
SACRE members were split into three groups and asked to review the SACRE 
Development Plan 2011 – 2014 from five key areas, which were – 
 

• standards and provision of RE; 
 

• effectiveness of the RE syllabus; 
 

• collective worship; 
 

• managing partnerships with the local authority and others; 
 

Page 5



Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education Wednesday 9 March 2011 

• contribution of SACRE to community cohesion. 
 
In considering these key areas members considered the following – 
 

• what is SACRE good at?; 
 

• what are the barriers to success?; 
 

• what are the areas for development?; 
 

• what should the priorities be for the Plan?; 
 
Agreed that – 
 

(1) the RE Adviser would collate all SACRE Members’ ideas and 
disseminate the draft SACRE Development Plan priorities to all 
members via email; 
 

(2) the house representatives would meet before the next meeting to 
discuss and confirm what the key priorities would be. 

 
79. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING   

 
Agreed the following meeting dates for the municipal year 2011-12: 
 

• 4 July 2011 to be held in the Warspite room, Council House at a 
time to be confirmed; 
 

• 28 November 2011 to be held at a venue and time to be confirmed; 
 

• 5 March 2012 to be held at a venue and time to be confirmed. 
 

80. EXEMPT BUSINESS   
 
There were no items of exempt business. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

Version 1: May 2011  Not protectively marked 

NEW PREVENT STRATEGY 
– MAY 2011 
 

 

Agenda Item 9Page 7



 

NEW PREVENT STRATEGY – MAY 2011 Page 2 of 5 

Brief comments and notes on Key Points affecting teaching, especially RE and our 
relationships with faith communities (SACREs) and the promotion of interfaith work   

 

There will be a new focus around the Three “I’s”. 

Challenging Extremist Ideology. 

Concern and support for Individuals who may be vulnerable and drawn into violent/nonviolent 
extremism. 

Work will be particularly focused on Institutions – where, it is shown, most radicalisation takes 
place. Mosques, Universities, Schools and prisons are mentioned. 

 

There will be 25 target areas; none in the south west, but these areas will change over time. 

There will be funding, through the Home Office, for the Police and for Local Authorities, 
Community activities and projects  

Additional funding will also be provided from the Foreign Office for work abroad.  
   

It is acknowledged that Prevent depends on a successful integration strategy but this, previously 
known as community cohesion, alone, will not meet Prevent objectives. 

Prevent will be funded by the Home Office but also other Departments.  

The Government emphasises the importance of keeping these two strategies, although related, 
separate. 

 

Prevent and Integration Programmes are to be kept separate. 

Prevent remains part of the Counter Terrorism Strategy - CONTEST. 

Prevent should address all forms of terrorism but the major threat and therefore the current 
priority is Al Qa’ida influenced, extremism. 

 

Interesting to note the Government’s new definition of extremism: 

 

See P107 – Glossary of terms 

 

Extremism is vocal or active opposition to fundamental British values, including 
democracy, the rule of law, individual liberty and mutual respect and tolerance of 
different faiths and beliefs. We also include in our definition of extremism calls for the 
death of members of our armed forces, whether in this country or overseas.”  

 

The Government will address the challenges of extremism, integration and cohesion through 
other means, e.g. The Government’s new approach to promoting integration will be led by the 
Department for Communities and Local Government.  

 

 

 

Page 8



 

NEW PREVENT STRATEGY – MAY 2011 Page 3 of 5 

The following selected extracts will be of particular significance in RE and to 
SACRE…  

 

Page 21 - 6.21  

“A stronger sense of belonging and citizenship makes communities more resilient to terrorism 
ideology and propagandists. We believe that Prevent depends on integration, democratic 
participation and a strong interfaith dialogue.” 

 

8 – This section deals with Ideology 

 

Page 44 - 8.4    “Understanding the connection between ideology and theology and how the first 
can masquerade as the second is important.”  

 
8.7  “… challenging ideologies is a collective responsibility.” 

 

9 – This section deals with Individuals 

 

10 –  This section deals with Institutions 

   

Page 65 - 10.13. “A third of publicly funded schools are associated with a specific faith group.” 

 

10.15 “All schools are required by law to teach a broad and balanced curriculum which promotes 
the spiritual, moral, social and cultural development of pupils and prepares them for the 
opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of life. Publicly funded schools are required to 
promote community cohesion, a duty first introduced through the Education and Inspections Act 
2006. 

 

10.16 There are also safeguards against biased or unbalanced teaching and the promotion of 
partisan political views in publicly funded schools. These require that all reasonably practicable 
steps are taken to ensure that, where political or controversial issues are brought to pupils’ 
attention, they are offered a balanced presentation of opposing views 

 

Page 69 
10.45 “Schools can help protect children from extremist and violent views in the same ways 

they help to safeguard children from drugs, gang violence and alcohol etc.”  

 

Page 70 -10.47   “… schools, the best environment in which to discuss terrorism”. 

 

10.49  “…a Preventing Extremism Unit, including Counter Terrorism, has been established within 
Department for Education.. 

 

Page 9



 

NEW PREVENT STRATEGY – MAY 2011 Page 4 of 5 

Page 71 - 10.53   “Publicly funded schools remain under a duty to promote community cohesion. 
The Education Bill, which is currently before Parliament removes the current duty on Ofsted to 
report on school’s contribution to community cohesion. However, the stronger focus on teaching 
and learning and a continuing focus on provision for pupils SMSC will enable Inspectors to identify 
inappropriate practice, including the promotion of messages that undermine community cohesion. 
   

Page 71 - 10.55  

“Over the lifetime of this strategy, DfE will undertake the following Prevent-related work in 
England: 

  

• ensure that teachers and other school staff know what to do when they see signs that a child is 
at risk of radicalisation;  

• continue to collaborate and encourage collaboration with policing and the development of 
products for teachers; 

• as part of the planned changes to the inspection arrangements for maintained schools, give due 
weight to schools’ activities in support of our shared values, and for any concerns to be reflected 
in the report; 

• strengthen the Independent School Standards to ensure that schools understand their 
obligations; 

• establish a set of standards for teachers which clarifies obligations regarding extremism; 

 • provide effective financial and non-financial ‘due diligence’ to minimise the risk that those with 
unacceptable views can set up Free Schools or gain control of academies or other publicly-funded 
schools; 

• work with the Charity Commission to ensure that schools that are charities and under their 
jurisdiction comply with charity law; 

• work to reduce the risk that children and young people are exposed to extremist views in out of 
school hours provision; and 

• help children’s services work with schools and other agencies, including Channel, to identify 
children at risk of radicalisation and take necessary steps to protect them from harm. 

 

Page 75 - 10.86  “…no single group should control prayer facilities,” 

 

Page 76 - 10.87   “… much less done in Further Education Colleges where potential radicalisation 
can take place.” 

 

Page 82 - 10.125  “ Importance of dialogue around terrorism/extremism with faith communities.” 

 

10.126  “The Home Office will seek a broad dialogue with faith-based groups and institutions 
covering a range of counter-terrorism and security issues – not just confined to Prevent.” 

 
10.127. “DCLG will continue to have the lead policy response for faith communities in England. 

The Department will support interfaith work which we judge can have a benefit for 
Prevent. 

Page 10



 

NEW PREVENT STRATEGY – MAY 2011 Page 5 of 5 

The DCLG is also undertaking a series of Ministerial discussions with individual faith communities 
on developing Big Society and promoting integration.” 

    

Page 82 - 10.129 – “Faith Leaders and especially Imams are able to engage with young people and 
talk to them about the issues they face and concerns they have.”  

  

The Prevent Strategy can be viewed on and downloaded from the Home Office website. 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	9 NEW PREVENT STRATEGY

